Earth Negotiations Bullem

A Reporting Service for Environment and Development Negotiations

Vol. 12 No. 88 Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development Tuesday, 3 November 1998
HIGHLIGHTS FROM THE UNFCCC FOURTH On organizational matters, the Executive Secretary proposed
CONFERENCE OF THE PARTIES changes to the provisional agenda (FCCC/CP/1998/1). SAUDI
2 NOVEMBER 1998 ARABIA, supported by KUWAIT, proposed addressing Article 3.14

(adverse impacts) as a separate item on the agenda. MAURITANIA
Delegates to the Fourth Conference of the Parties (COP-4) to thgted that no objections were raised to the proposed agenda change
UN Framework Convention on Climate Change (FCCC) heard  during informal consultations on November 1. The Executive Secre-
welcoming remarks and considered organizational matters. Deleggi@gproposed expansion of the brackets under Agenda Item 4(e) to
debated the COP-4 agenda at length, focusing on the deletion of aiclude references to Article 3.14. SAUDI ARABIA, supported by
item concerning voluntary commitments for non-Annex | Parties. VENEZUELA, accepted the proposal, but stressed that discussion
PLENARY under Item 5 (matters related to the Kyoto Protocol) should allow time

Hiroshi Ohki (Japan), President of COP-3, recalled the importamr Article 3.14. _
role played by COP-3 in finding an answer to the Berlin Mandate and On Agenda Item 6 (voluntary commitments by non-Annex |

said COP-4 faces the challenge of maintaining the political Parties), ARGENTINA recalled its request to include this.item on the
momentum created in Kyoto. He noted the need to review existing@9€nda and noted that no consensus had emerged despite its efforts
economic structures and re-examine lifestyles. encourage consultations.

Maria Julia Alsogaray, Secretary of Natural Resources and INDONESIA, on behalf of the G-77/CHINA, said this issue had

Sustainable Development of Argentina, was elected President of 2€€n deliberated at length, but no consensus had been reached. He
COP-4. She noted that while Argentina was not one of the countrigdf ©P0sed adoption of the agenda without Item 6. INDIA recalled that
that has "historic responsibilities" for the climate change problem, #€ debate at Kyoto rejected the idea of voluntary commitments,

wished to belong to the group holding future responsibilities for stating it. i; not implied in the principle of common but differentiated
commitment leading to a solution. She said she wanted COP-4 to 'éSponsibilities. SAUDI ARABIA, KUWAIT, VENEZUELA and

signal a new momentum in the process and said an action plan forALGERIA cautioned that discussion of the issue at this stage would b
future work should be established here. While developing countrieg'V'S'Ve and distract from discussions of compliance and continuing

share the burden of responsibility in responding to this issue, they HAgEeases in developed countries’ emissions. BRAZIL described the
an ethical duty to ensure sustainable development. FCCC as an exercise in burden sharing, recognizing differentiated

responsibilities between Annex | and non-Annex | Parties. He noted

observed that Buenos Aires translates as “good air” and hoped tha{fgﬁtsnon-Annex | Parties are well ahead in meeting their existing

coincidence could be seen as an emblem of this process and a sy il g]nrgggqteomsr;?%tgv&he%@gé ! gﬁ?g}oﬂgld tggfntglféhen?iggzc gitj
of the success of COP-4. p ) p

: . : . existing commitments. IRAN and UNITED ARAB EMIRATES noted
Michael Zam_mlt Cutajar_, Executive Secreta_ry of the FC_CC’ that neither the FCCC nor the Kyoto Protocol provides for voluntary

observed that this was the first COP to be held in a developing COURIY, mitments and cautioned that the discussion could lead to the

He anticipated that an action plan with ambitious and politically ﬁrrﬂnposition of commitments on developing countries. EGYPT said tha

deadlines would be created as a result of this meeting. He noted thaly oo ning countries were entitled to sustainable development to
COP-4 presents an opportunity to revitalize the FCCC itself, perhai rove the lives of their people

through strengthening the transfer of technology and know-how, an CHINA noted that developed country emissions are projected to

financial support. COP-4 could mark the occasion where the busings%
ot . . ; . €5% above 1990 levels by 2000 and 13% above 1990 levels by 201
community increased its role in combating climate change throuthe disotinguished developin{] country “surv?val emissions” from y

efficient programs conducted in an equitable way. developed country “luxury emissions,” and said developing countries
risked losing financial assistance and technology transfer under the
FCCC. He said voluntary commitments would create a new category

Dr. Fernando de la Rua, Buenos Aires City Government Chief,

This issue of th&arth Negotiations Bulleti® <enb@iisd.org> is written and edited by Chad Carpenter LL.M. <chadc@iisd.org>, Angela Churie <churie@I.kth.se>| Victol
Kellett <vkellett@iisd.ca>, Greg Picker <gregpicker@hotmail.com>, Lavanya Rajamani LL.M. <Irajamani@hotmail.com>. The Riitoelia Chasek, Ph.D.
<pam@iisd.org> and the Managing Editor is Langston James "Kimo" Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>. The WWW Content Editor is Petpfddrear@ecology.u-net.com> and
WWW design by Andrei Henry <ahenry@iisd.ca>. Digital photos by Leila Mead <leila@interport.net>. Digital engineering byBeaickBavid @virtualstockholm.net> and
Chris Spence <spencechris@hotmail.com>. Logistics by Molly Rosenman <mrosenman@iisd.ca>. French translation by Mongi GadgpGiadidum@enb.intl.tn>. The
Sustaining Donors of tHgulletinare the Netherlands Ministry for Development Cooperation, the Government of Canada (through CIDA) and the United Stdi&sS&iug
General Support for tHaulletinduring 1998 is provided by the United Kingdom Department for International Development (DFID), the German Federal Minigitigrohent
(BMU), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Swiss Office for Environment, Forests and Landscape, the European Céb@)tythe Ministries of Environment and
Foreign Affairs of Austria, the Ministries of Foreign Affairs and Environment of Finland, the Ministries of Foreign AffaiEsn@nadnment of Norway, the United Nations
Development Programme (UNDP), the Global Environment Facility (GEF) and the Ministry for the Environment in Iceland. SpeeifiltcsENB coverage of COP-4 is
provided by Germany’s GTZ and the UNFCCC SecretariatBliiletin can be contacted in Buenos Aires at (15) 170-7613, by e-mail at <enb@iisd.org> and fax: +1-2{12-64
0206. IISD can be contacted at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, Manitoba R3B 0Y4, Canada. The opinionsekpiestbdiegotiations Bulletiare those|
of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of 11ISD and other funders. Excerpts Earththiegotiations Bulletimay be used in non-commercial publications only
and only with appropriate academic citation. Electronic versions &uletin are sent to e-mail distribution lists <http://iisd.ca/enb/email.asp> and full multimedia coverage o
COP-4 can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://www.iisd.ca/climate/ba/.




Earth Negotiations Bulletin
Tuesday, 3 November 1998 TRl ... Vol. 12 No. 88 Page 2

of Parties under the FCCC and could destroy the unity of the G-77heutrality of the presidency. INDIA and SAUDI ARABIA observed
China. He said the COP Presidency should remain neutral. QATARhat the item had been deleted because there was no consensus on
TOGO, CUBA, THAILAND and UGANDA also supported the G-77turther discussion. Voluntary commitments should not be considered
China. and the President should not participate in consultations.
TANZANIA and SOUTH AFRICA said methodological and insti- Regarding the election of officers, the following delegates were
tutional issues relating to the flexibility mechanisms, such as the elected: Papa Cham (the Gambia); Mohamed Al Sabban (Saudi
CDM, should be the focus of deliberation. ZIMBABWE noted that Arabia); T. Gzirishvili (Georgia); Harald Dovland (Norway); Ole
flexibility mechanisms already seek to further reduce non-Annex | Ploughmann (Denmark); Espen Rgnneberg, (Marshall Islands); Joh
emissions. SAMOA acknowledged that the Convention and its objéshe (Antigua and Barbuda); Bakary Kante (Senegal); Kok Kee Cho
tives stood to gain from a further discussion of voluntary commit- (Malaysia); and Maciej Sadowski (Poland).
ments, but discussion at this stage would be detrimental. Discussions Delegates also reviewed reports on the work on the subsidiary
should focus on what could be expected from developing countriesigggles as presented by their respective chairs. SBSTA Chair Kok Ke
initiatives Annex | countries could take to assist developing countriehiow (Malaysia) presented document FCCC/SBSTA/1998/5 and SE
COLOMBIA suggested that the vulnerability of developing nations Chair Bakary Kante (Senegal) presented document FCCC/SBI/199¢
rather than their commitments, be discussed. CHILE said several 6. AG13 Chair Patrick Széll (UK) stated that the group reached agre:
developing countries were making serious efforts to limit GHG emigent on its final report with the exception of bracketed text regarding
sions and favored an exchange of views on voluntary cooperation,the membership of the Multilateral Consultative Committee (MCC).
without entailing binding obligations or ignoring the principle of  Some Parties had insisted on equal representation of Annex | and ne
common but differentiated responsibility. Annex | Parties, but the G-77/CHINA said membership should be
AUSTRALIA, in supporting Argentina’s bid to include Item 6 on based on equitable geographic representation. The President said s
the Agenda, noted that Annex | countries alone cannot fulfill the goalsuld consult with the Bureau and report to the Plenary on 6
of the FCCC. She said it was a sensitive issue that should be discussesgmber.
in a non-controversial manner. With JAPAN, she said that non-Annex IDelegates considered a draft decision on the attendance of inter-
Parties wishing to adopt voluntary commitments must be given an governmental and non-governmental organizations at contact group
opportunity to consider their options under the Kyoto Protocol throygft CC/CP/1998/L.1/Rev 1). SAUDI ARABIA said Rule 7 of the draft
discussion. rules of procedure (FCCC/CP/1996/2) provided for the attendance o
The US expressed regret that divisions among Parties would observers and there was no need for the draft decision. The Executi
prevent delegates from putting all the issues on the table at this sesSexretary recalled that the draft decision was in response to a specif
She said that locking doors to discussion would hinder understandieguest of the SBI as contained in its report (FCCC/SBI/1998/6). The
An open and full discussion on options could clarify a number of gUeENTRAL AFRICAN REPUBLIC, SWITZERLAND and the US
tions. These include: how Parties would join Annex B; how base yazoted the FCCC stands to benefit from NGO and IGO experiences.
would be determined; how Parties would develop targets; and whefther President noted that the draft decision contained not only rules,
Parties would still be able to host CDM projects. With JAPAN and but also ways of acting in contact groups. Delegates accepted the dr
CANADA, NEW ZEALAND supported a discussion on this item. Helecision.
said if this were not done, the President should use her prerogative to A number of countries also presented general statements that
facilitate informal consultations. NORWAY supported the right of a outlined their domestic and international programmes, and elaborate
Party to bring forward an issue for discussion, but left the method aheir expectations for COP-4 and future negotiations.
conducting the discussion to the discretion of the President.
The RUSSIAN FEDERATION reminded delegates that within 18Y THE CORRIDORS o
years, emissions from non-Annex | countries would exceed those of D€l€gates opposed to the host country's initiative on "voluntary
Annex | countries. The CZECH REPUBLIC, with HUNGARY and commitments anc_j the COP Pres_ldents compromise proposal for_ _
SLOVENIA, supported the inclusion of Item 6 and noted that it coul@formal consultations are preparing to stand guard over the remainir
foster useful debate and dialogue. POLAND said if Parties wanted ¢§/l0€rations to ensure that the issue does not re-enter the formal de
adhere to FCCC goals, they should be encouraged to assume vquﬁfQFg’nS' One concern is whether and how the issue might re-emerg

commitments. This dialogue would reflect the dynamic situation in H‘%d the guise of other agenda items such as the second review of
global economy and changes within Parties. adequacy of Convention commitments (Item 4 (d)). Delegates have

AUSTRIA, on behalf of the EU, said the question of broadeningnmed there are a number of outstanding issues to be resolved under

commitments in the long term is necessary and unavoidable. He re%gnyentlon and several Protocol eIe_men_ts to be elabor:?\te_d. These
s should take precedence at this point in the negotiations.

nized what has been achieved by many non-Annex | countries. He 3
it may not be possible to resolve this issue in plenary and proposed that

the COP President make a decision on how to proceed. KOREA said THINGS TO LOOK FOR TODAY
his country was not in a position to take on binding commitments for SB|: SBI will meet at 10:00 am in Plenary .
several years, but supported convening informal discussions. SBSTA: SBSTA will meet at 10:00 am Plenary L.

ARGENTINA said no aspect of the FCCC and the Protocol limited
its ability to raise the issue of voluntary commitments. He said the
manner in which delegates address the issue would require discussion.
Delegates adopted the provisional agenda without Item 6, as no
consensus existed on its inclusion. The President noted that as several
Parties had expressed interest in continuing discussion, she would
facilitate informal consultations. CHINA cautioned against the
proposed informal consultations, stating they could jeopardize the



